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INFORMATION ABOUT TH E DISTRICT 
 

Public Utility District No. 2 of Pacific County is a customer-owned utility providing electricity, 

water and wholesale telecommunication services. The District was formed in 1937 and began 

business operations in 1940 serving 4,800 customers. The District now serves over 18,200 

residential, commercial, industrial and irrigation customers throughout the 937 square miles of 

Pacific County. 
 

The District purchases the majority of its power from the Bonneville Power Administration under 

a Slice/Block Power Sales Agreement.  The remainder comes from market purchases, as needed. 

The  District  sells  surplus  power  during  times  when  supply  exceeds  demand.    An  elected, 

three-member Board of Commissioners governs the District. The Board appoints a General 

Manager to oversee the District’s daily operations as well as its approximately 55 employees. For 

fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, the District operated on an annual budget of $30 million. 
 

 

Contact information related to this report 

 
 
 

Address: 

 

Public Utility District No. 2 of Pacific County 

P.O. Box 472 

Raymond, WA  98577 

 

Contact: 
 

Renae Powell, Finance Manager 

 

Telephone: 
 

(360) 942-6906 

 

Website: 
 

www.pacificpud.org 

Information current as of report publish date. 
 
 

Audit history 
 

You can find current and past audit reports for Public Utility District No. 2 of Pacific County at 

http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Public Utility District No. 2 of Pacific County 

January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 

Board of Commissioners 

Public Utility District No. 2 of Pacific County 

Raymond, Washington 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Public Utility District No. 2 of Pacific 

County, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial 

statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the 

table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of Public Utility District No. 2 of Pacific County, as of 

December 31, 2021, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then 

ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 

the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 

requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 

for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
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fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 

conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s 

ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 

including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.  

Auditor’s Responsibilit ies for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our  opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 

assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 

Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The 

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 

likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 

reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

Performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards includes the 

following responsibilities: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit; 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 

Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements; 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such 

opinion is expressed;  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 

presentation of the financial statements;  

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 

aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going 

concern for a reasonable period of time; and  

 Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 

control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed in the table 

of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the 

responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 

by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 

financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 

economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 

the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 

our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 

the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 

information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 

an opinion or provide any assurance. 

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING 

STANDARDS 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 

September 7, 2022 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting 

and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 

agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 

internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 

provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting 

or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial 

reporting and compliance. 

 

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor 

Olympia, WA 

September 7, 2022 
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PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 of PACIFIC COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ending December 31, 2021 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of Pacific County PUD No. 2 (District), we offer readers of the District's financial 
statements this narrative, overview, and analysis of financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 
31, 2021. Information within this section should be used in conjunction with the basic financial statements 
and accompanying notes. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

Public Utility District No. 2 of Pacific County accounts for its financial activities within a single proprietary 
fund. The District's financial activities are comprised of the purchase, transmission, distribution, and sale 
of electric energy, the distribution of water services, as well as leasing excess capacity of its fiber optic 
system. 

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic 
financial statements. The basic financial statements consist of proprietary fund financial statements and 
notes to financial statements. This report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish 
additional detail to support the basic financial statements. 

In accordance with requirements set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the 
District's financial statements employ the accrual basis of accounting in recognizing increases and 
decreases in economic resources. Accrual accounting recognizes all revenues when earned and 
expenses when incurred during the year, regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The basic financial statements are comprised of: 

• Combined Statement of Net Position
The District presents its Combined Statement of Net Position using the balance sheet format. The
statement reflects assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources and net position
(equity) of the District at year-end. The net position section of the Statement is separated into
three categories: net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net
position. The District's accumulated gains and losses in fair market value from hedging activities
are considered deferred inflows and outflows and have been classified as such on the Statement
of Net Position.

• Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
This statement reflects the transactions and events that have increased or decreased the 
District's total economic resources during the period. Revenues are presented net of allowances
and are summarized by major source. Revenues and expenses are classified as operating or
non-operating based on the nature of the transaction.

• Combined Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the District's cash receipts and
payments for operations, as well as funds provided and used in investing and financing activities.
The District includes cash equivalents within its definition of cash.

The notes to the financial statements, presented at the end of the basic financial statements, are 
considered an integral part of the District's presentation of financial position, results of operations, and 
changes in cash flows. The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a full 
understanding of the data provided in the District's financial statements. 
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Long Term Debt Activity 
At the end of the 2021 fiscal year, the District had $8.4 million in outstanding long-term debt, which 
includes unamortized bond premium and the payments coming due within one year. This represents a 
decrease of 1.09 million when compared to the same figure for 2020. The District issued no new bonds in 
2021 or 2020. In 2014, the District issued $14. 7 million in new debt. See Note 6 for more information 
regarding debt activity for 2021. 

Financial Analysis 
During 2021 the District's overall financial position improved. The District experienced an increase of 
$2.15 million in utility sales and fee revenues which can be attributed to the improvement. The District's 
net position increased by $4.26 million compared to an increase in net position of $2.19 million in 2020. 

The following narrative is an analysis of the change in net position by major components of income, with a 
primary focus on changes between 2021 and 2020. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 

Change in Net Position (in thousands) 

Operating Revenues 

Utility Sales & Service Fees 

Other Operating Revenue 

Non-operating Revenues 

Interest Income 

Other Income 

Total Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Power Supply 

Operations & Maintenance 

Administrative 

Taxes & Depreciation 

Non-Operating Expenses 

Interest & Other Non-Operating Exp 

Total Expenses 

Income (Loss) Before Capital 

Contributions 

Capital Contributions 

Change in Net Position 

Prior Year Net Position 

Ending Net Position 

2021 

28,307 

882 

20 

2 

29,211 

13,765 

3,219 

3,567 

5,688 

347 

26,586 

2,625 

1,638 

4,263 

23,445 

27,708 

2020 Change % Change 

26,155 2,152 8.23% 

894 -12 -1.34%

116 -96 -82.76%

70 -68 -97.14%

27,235 1,976 7.26%

12,945 820 6.33% 

2,982 237 7.95% 

4,559 -992 -21.76%

5,424 264 4.87%

404 -57 -14.11%

26,314 272 1.03%

921 1,704 185.02% 

1,270 368 28.98% 

2,191 2,072 94.57% 

21,254 2,191 10.31% 

23,445 4,263 18.18% 
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Non-operating Revenues 
For 2021 non-operating revenue decreased a net of $12 thousand which reflects a drop in customer fees 
and increased revenue from Broadband revenues. 

Operating Expenses 
The Operating Expense category includes: Power Supply, Operation and Maintenance, Administrative 
and Taxes and Depreciation. 

Operating Expenses were up overall by $329 thousand dollars in comparison to 2020 which is a 1 % 
increase. 

The following explains material year to year changes by Operating Expense category. 

Power Supply 
Power Supply, the largest single category of operating expenses, came in at $13.76 million in 2021, up 820 
thousand, which is an 6.33% increase from 2020. Power costs from BPA, market purchases and sales, an 
increase in the overall number of customers and energy sales are significant factors affecting 2021 power 
costs. 

The District, as a slice customer, is a participant in the output of the Federal Columbia River Power System 
(FCRPS), which includes the Columbia Generating Station at Hanford, WA. Hydro-electric generation 
however contributes much of the power produced by the FCRPS. The District is generally a net seller, 
meaning its share of the systems output exceeds its load. Therefore, surplus sales can help offset total 
cost of power. Many factors, including precipitation, snowpack, natural gas prices, and others contribute 
to the market price for electric energy. These factors impact the prices the District receives for surplus 
power sales or pays when it makes market purchases to meet its load. 

Overall, the District experienced an increase of $820 thousand in power cost for 2021. The District reported 
net balance market activity of (47) thousand in 2021 which is down from 2020 when the District reported 
net balance market activity of $872 thousand. Significant cold events in early 2021 and heat events in the 
summer contributed to unfavorable market conditions and negatively affected the performance of the net 
balance market activity. The District's 8% increase in revenues along with an overall 1 % increase in the 
number of customers also contributed to higher power cost in 2021. 
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Proprietary Fund
As of 12/31/2021

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
ASSETS
  CURRENT ASSETS

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents 9,019,772$                     
Designated Cash 10,387,301$                   

Accounts Receivable, net 1,927,208$                     
Accrued Unbilled Revenues 2,251,435$                     
Inventory - Materials & Supplies 4,233,339$                     
Prepaid Expenses & Option Premiums 174,956$                        

Total Current Assets 27,994,011                     

   NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Bond Reserve Fund (Note 1) 1,332,662                       
Restricted Net Pension Asset 4,554,248                       
Other Receivables 521,055                          
Other Charges (Note 3) 987,553                          

Subtotal Noncurrent Assets 7,395,518                       

Utility Plant (Note 4)
Land and Non-Depreciable Assets 1,003,721                       
Electric & Water Plant in Service 118,758,091                   
Construction Work in Progress 3,988,851                       
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (71,338,109)                    

Net Utility Plant 52,412,554                     
Total Noncurrent Assets 59,808,072                     

TOTAL ASSETS 87,802,083                     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives (Note 3) 30,977                            
Pension Outflow of Resources 529,516                          
OPEB Outflow of Resources 6,150,419                       

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 6,710,912                       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Proprietary Fund
As of 12/31/2021

(CONTINUED)

NET POSITION, LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
LIABILITIES
   CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 2,736,748                       
Accrued Taxes Payable 624,065                          
Current Portion Of Compensated Absences 424,151                          
Current Portion of OPEB Liability 784,318                          
Accrued Interest Payable 111,686                          
Revenue Bonds, Current Portion (Note 6) 1,089,321                       

     Total Current Liabilities 5,770,289

   NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue Bonds & Other Long Term Debt (Note 6) 7,323,791                       
Compensated Absences 342,163                          
Net Pension Liability 434,527                          
Long Term Other Post Employment Benefits 33,796,848                     
Customer Deposits 828,298                          
Other Liabilities 30,977                            

     Total Noncurrent Liabilities 42,756,604                     
     Total Liabilities 48,526,893                     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated Increase in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives (Note 3) 987,553                          
Deferred Pension Inflow of Resources 482,180                          
Deferred Pension Inflow of Resources 4,322,397                       
Deferred OPEB Inflow of Resources 12,485,497                     

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 18,277,627                     

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 45,332,105                     
Restricted for Debt Service 1,332,662                       
Restricted for DRS Pension. 655,477                          
Unrestricted (19,611,769)                    

     Total Net Position 27,708,475$                   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Proprietary Fund

For Year Ending 12/31/2021

  OPERATING REVENUES
Sales of Electric Energy & Water - Retail 28,307,205$  
Broadband Revenue 627,336 
Other Operating Revenue 254,293 
     Total Operating Revenues 29,188,834$  

OPERATING EXPENSES
Power Supply 13,764,740$  
Distribution Operation & Maintenance 2,974,691 
Broadband Expense 243,867 
Customer Service, Energy and Information Services 1,367,930 
Administrative & General Expense 2,199,418 
Taxes 2,293,441 
Depreciation 3,394,263 
     Total Operating Expenses 26,238,350$  

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 2,950,484$  

NONOPERATING REVENUES & (EXPENSES)
Loan Receivable Interest Income -$  
Investment Interest Income 19,882 
Other Nonoperating Income 1,807 
Other Nonoperating Expense (29,744) 
Interest Expense (317,122) 
     Total Nonoperating Revenues & Expenses (325,177)$  

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 2,625,307$  

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 1,637,826$  

CHANGE IN NET POSITION PRIOR YEAR 4,263,133$  

TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 23,445,342$  

TOTAL NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 27,708,475$  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Proprietary Fund
For Year Ending 12/31/2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers 29,731,087
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Service Providers (18,365,074)
Cash Paid to Employees for Salaries and Wages (5,045,332)
Taxes Paid (2,293,441)
   Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 4,027,240

CASH FLOWS FROM  NONCAPITAL FINANCING  ACTIVITIES
Other Income 1,807
Other Expense (630)
   Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Activities 1,177

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capital Assets (3,455,182)
Bond Principal Paid (1,092,901)
Bond Interest Paid (317,122)
Capital Contributions 1,637,827
Other (29,114)
   Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (3,256,492)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income 19,883
   Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 19,883

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 791,808

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 19,947,927

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 20,739,735

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)  OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss) 2,950,484

Adjustments to reconcile net operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
   Depreciation/Amortization 3,394,263
   (Increase) Decrease in Unbilled Revenues (13,905)
   Increase (Decrease) in Total OPEB Liability (419,594)
   (Increase) Decrease in Pension Expense (1,748,434)
   Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable (231,149)
   Decrease (Increase) in Notes Receivable 182,296
   Decrease (Increase) in Inventories (732,051)
   Decrease (Increase) in Prepaids and Deposits (56,647)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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   Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 631,715
   Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Taxes Payable 56,620
   Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 23,977
   Increase (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (10,335)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 4,027,240

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

The deferred inflows and outflows relating to GASB 68 and GASB 75 had no effect 
on cash flows for 2021.
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N ates to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Pacific County Public Utility District No. 2 (District) is a customer-owned utility providing electrical, 
water, and wholesale telecommunications services in Pacific County, Washington. The District was 
incorporated on March 1, 1940 and operates under the laws of the State of Washington applicable to a 

public utility district. It is legally and fiscally independent of other state or local governments. The 
District provides retail electricity to the majority of Pacific County and provides water to three areas of 
the County and is authorized under State law to provide wholesale telecommunication service. The 
District provided electric service to 18,071 customers and water service to 322 customers as of 
December 31, 2021. 

A board of three commissioners, elected by the voters, serves the District to establish policy, review 
operations, and approve plans, budgets, and expenses. The legal responsibilities and powers of the 
District, including the establishment of rates and charges for services rendered, are exercised through the 
comm1ss10n. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, management has considered all potential 
component units in defining the reporting entity. The District has no component units. 

The following is a summary of the more significant policies: 

A. Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The accounting policies of the District conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The District has applied all applicable GASB pronouncements.

Accounting records are maintained in accordance with methods prescribed by the Washington State 
Auditor's Office under the authority of Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 43.09 and the Uniform 
System of Accounts prescribed for public utilities and licensees by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC). The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting where revenues are recognized when incurred, regardless of 
the timing ofrelated cash flows. Revenues and expenses related to the District's principal operations are 
considered to be operating revenues and expenses; while revenues and expenses related to capital, 
financing, and investing activities are considered to be nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

The District's financial statements include the financial position of the District's Utility System. The 
Electric and Water Systems are consolidated into one combined Utility System. In the combined 
statements certain intersystem transactions are eliminated in total balances. 

B. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand. The District considers all
deposits with the Washington State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) as cash and
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cash equivalents. Since the pool is sufficiently liquid to permit withdraw of cash at any time without 
prior notice or penalty, equity in the pool is also deemed to be a cash equivalent. 

Cash and investments are recorded in accounts as required by District policy. Restricted assets represent 
accounts that are restricted by bond covenants or third-party contractual agreements. Accounts that are 
allocated by resolution of the commissioners are considered to be board designated accounts. Board 
designated accounts are a component of unrestricted assets as their use may be redirected at any time by 
approval of the commissioners. 

As required by state law, all deposits and investments of the District's funds are obligations of the U.S. 
Governrnent and its agencies, including certificates of deposit, general obligations of Washington State 
municipalities, LGIP, passbook accounts, and deposits with Washington State banks and savings and 
loan associations, or other investments allowed by Chapter 39.59 RCW. 

The District's deposits and certificates of deposit are entirely covered by Federal Depository Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) or by collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered 
by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC). 

C. Restricted Assets:

In accordance with bond resolutions, related agreements and laws, separate restricted accounts have
been established. These assets are restricted for specific uses including debt service, bond reserve, and
capital additions. These are classified as current or noncurrent assets, as appropriate. As of December
31, 2021 the District's restricted cash asset is the Bond Reserve Fund of $1,332,662.

The District participates in Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) plans 1, 2 and 3. GASB 78 
requires the District to report its proportion of the PERS net pension assets and liabilities on our 
financial statements. As of December 31, 2021, the District's portion of the PERS 2/3 net pension asset 
is $4,554,248. For purposes of calculating the restricted net position as it relates to the net pension 
asset, the District includes the related deferred inflows and outflows of resources in its calculation.
D. Inventories:

Inventories are valued at average cost, which approximates the market value.

E. Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Management periodically assesses the collectability of accounts receivable. This assessment provides
the basis for the allowance for doubtful accounts and the related bad debt expense. The District's
allowance for doubtful accounts was $180,235 as of December 31, 2021.

F. Utility Plant and Depreciation

Utility plant in service and other capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes both direct and
indirect costs of construction or acquisition. Major expenditures ( exceeding $3,000) for capital assets,
including capital leases and major repairs that increase useful lives, are capitalized. The cost of
maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as incurred, while the cost of replacements and
improvements is capitalized. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost,
where historical cost is not known or at acquisitional value if donated. Preliminary costs incurred for
proposed projects are deferred until construction of the project is completed. Costs relating to projects
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ultimately constructed are transferred to the utility's plant assets. Charges that relate to abandoned 

projects are expensed. 

The District's Continuing Property Records system reflects the recording of property units added and 
retired. Initial depreciation on utility plant is recorded in the month subsequent to purchase or 

completion of construction. As prescribed by FERC, the book cost of operating property retired or 

otherwise disposed of, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. As a result of this guidance, 
the decreases to accumulated depreciation can exceed the decreases to depreciable assets. 

The District follows FERC operating instructions for depreciation expense, which includes all classes of 

depreciable electric plant in service except depreciation expense chargeable to clearing accounts. 
Depreciation expenses applicable to transportation equipment and shop equipment are charged to 

clearing accounts to obtain a proper distribution of expenses between construction and operation. The 

depreciation expense charged to clearing accounts is included in Maintenance under Operating Expenses 

on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Buildings & Improvements 
Electric Plant - Transmission 
Electric Plant - Distribution 
Transportation Equipment 
General Plant & Equipment 
Water Plant 
Telecommunications 

See Note 4 - Capital Assets for additional information. 

G. Compensated Absences

25-40 years
17-30 years
17-33 years

7-10 years
5-20 years

5- 50 years
7-30 years

The District accrues unused compensated absence benefits as amounts are earned. Compensated

absences include vacation, sick, and other leave. Employees accrue personal leave based upon their
length of service. Leave is charged as a component of payroll overhead as time is incurred by an
employee. A corresponding liability is recognized until such time as an employee uses or sells their

leave to the District in accordance with the tenns of the plan. The liability for unused leave was

$766,314 as of December 31, 2021. The District estimates $480,700 will be used in the next fiscal year.

The current and noncurrent liability for unpaid personal time off appears on the statement of net

position.

In accordance with the tenns and conditions of the Health Reimbursement Arrangement - Voluntary 

Employees' Beneficiary Association (HRA-VEBA) Plan, the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) 

and/or District Resolution: 

• Personal Leave is payable in full upon an employee's resignation or death.

• At retirement, the District will deposit the cash value of any unused PL hours to the retirees

HRA-VEBA account.
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See Note 7 - Pension Plans for additional information on the HRA-VEBA plan. 

H. Supplemental Leave Bank

Employees with sick leave balances remaining under the terms of the former sick leave plan were able
to transfer the balance into a Supplemental Leave Bank (SLB). No additional accrual hours may be
posted to the SLB. In accordance with the terms and conditions of the HRA-VEBA Plan, the CBA
and/or District Resolution employees may utilize SLB hours to supplement wages while on health
related leave.

I. Purchase Commitments

See Note 12 - Power Supply for contracts with the Bonneville Power Administration and others for
future power supply.

J. Revenue Recognition

Revenues from retail sales of electricity include an estimate for energy delivered to customers between
the last billing date and the end of the year. This amount is reflected in the accompanying financial
statements in the amount of $2,251,435 on December 31, 2021. This estimate impacted electric revenue
by $13,905.

K. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions for the District consist mainly of line extension fees. Line extension fees represent
amounts collected to recover the costs of installing new lines. Capital contributions are recorded as
revenues when received.

L. Unamortized Bond Premium

Original issue bond premiums and discounts relating to revenue bonds are amortized over the terms of
the respective bond issues using the bonds outstanding method. Bond premiums and discounts offset the
debt outstanding balance.

M. Pensions

The Dist1ict is a member of the Washington State Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) cost
sharing plan. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and asset, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of all state sponsored pension plans and additions to/deductions from those
plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

N. Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

The District provides OPEB benefits to its retirees. The benefits are administered by the Public Utility
Risk Management Services (PURMS). For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, OPEB
expense, deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources related to OPEB, GASB 75
requires the projection of the total OPEB Liability to be based on a claims costs or age adjusted
premiums basis. An actuarial study was performed as of December 31, 2021, to determine the District's
liability. See Note 11- Other Postemployment Benefits for additional information.
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

The total Deposits and Investments as of December 31, 2021 is $20,739,734. The District has deposits 
with Bank of the Pacific of $5,127,400 and $15,612.334 in the State Local Government Investment Pool 
(LGIP). 

Deposits 

Custodial credit risk (deposits) Custodial risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, 
the government's deposits may not be returned. The District has not adopted a policy that addresses 
deposit custodial risk; however, the District's deposits are entirely covered by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool 
administered by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC). In the event of a bank 

failure, claims for the District's deposits would be satisfied by the FDIC or from the sale of collateral 
held in the PDPC pool. 

Amounts held in Washington State banks approved by the Public Deposit Protection Commission 

(PDPC) are covered by federal depository insurance up to $250,000 and by the PDPC for amounts over 
$250,000. The PDPC constitutes a multiple financial institution collateral pool that provides for 
additional assessments against participants of the pool on a pro rata basis. Accordingly, the deposits 
covered by PDPC are considered to be insured. 

Investments 

The District currently has investments in the LGIP. The LGIP was authorized by Chapter 294, Laws of 
1986 and is managed and operated by the Washington State Treasurer. The State Finance Committee is 
the administrator of the statute that created the pool and adopts rules. The State Treasurer is responsible 
for establishing the investment policy for the pool and reviews the policy annually and proposed 
changes are reviewed by the LGIP advisory committee. 

The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investment securities. Further, the District 
is not subject to foreign currency risk or interest rate risk. 

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost 

As of December 31, 2021, the District had the following investments at amortized cost: 

District's own investments 

Investment 

State Investment Pool (LGIP) $15,612,334 

Total $15,612,334 

Investments in the LGIP, a qualified external investment pool, are reported at amortized cost which 
approximates fair value. The LGIP is classified as an unrated 2a-7 investment pool per the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. The pool portfolio is invested in a manner that meets the maturity, quality, 
diversification, liquidity and shadow pricing requirements that allow it to report at amortized costs as set 
forth by GASB 79. The LGIP does not have any legally binding guarantees of share values and does not 
impose liquidity fees or redemption gates on participant withdrawals. The only restriction on 
withdrawals from the State Investment Pool is a deposit received by ACH. In this case, a five-day 
waiting period exists. The LGIP operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. 
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The weighted average maturities of the LGIP is less than three (3) months, with cash available to the 
District on demand. The on-demand availability of these funds defines them as cash equivalent liquid 
investments and not subject to interest rate risk. Cash investments are not subject to interest rate risk or 
any market value reporting requirements. All LGIP investments are either obligations of the United 
States government, government-sponsored enterprises, or insured demand deposit accounts and 
certificates of deposits, meaning credit risk is very limited. The investments are either fully insured or 
fully held by a third-party custody provider in the name of the LGIP. The LGIP is audited by the 
Washington State Auditor's Office and regulated by Washington RCWs. 

The Office of the State Treasurer prepares an annual LGIP financial report. A copy of the report is 
available from the Office of the State Treasurer, PO Box 40200, Olympia, Washington 98504-0200, or 

online at http://www.tre.wa.gov. 

NOTE 3 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 

The District enters into derivative energy transactions to hedge its known or expected positions within 

its approved Risk Management policy. Decisions are made to enter into forward transactions to protect 

its financial position, specifically to deal with expected long and short positions as determined by 
projected load and resource balance positions, with the objective of providing stable rates and meeting 
budget. 

The District has adopted GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative 
Instruments. Subject to certain exceptions, GASB Statement No. 53 requires that every derivative 

instrument be recorded on the statement of net position as an asset or liability measured at its fair value, 
and that changes in the derivative's fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless such 
derivatives meet specific hedge accounting criteria to be determined as effective. Effective hedges 

qualify for hedge accounting and such changes in fair values are deferred. These are recorded on the 
statement of net position as deferred inflows/outflows of resources as accumulated increase/decrease in 

fair value of hedging derivatives. 

It is the District's policy to document and apply as appropriate the normal purchase and normal sales 
exceptions under GASB Statement No. 53. The District has reviewed its various contractual 
arrangements to detennine applicability of these standards. Purchases and sales of forward electricity 

and option contracts that require the physical delivery and which are expected to be used or sold by the 

reporting entity in the normal course of business are generally considered "normal purchases and normal 
sales." These transactions are excluded from GASB Statement No. 53 and therefore are not required to 

be recorded at fair value in the financial statements. Financial swaps for electricity are derivatives under 
GASB Statement No. 53, but generally do not meet the "nonnal purchases and normal sales" criteria. 

Options are amortized to power costs over the exercise period of the option. 

At December 31, 2021 the District had the following hedging derivative instruments outstanding. 

Changes in Fair Value Fair Value at December 31, 2021 

Classification Amount Classification Amount Notional 

Other Charge $30,977 
Deferred 

$30,977 8,280MWh 
Outflow 

Other Credit $987,553 Deferred Inflow $987,553 66,235 MWh 
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Option and Swap Hedging Derivatives: 

2021 

Notional value $3,156,546 

Volumes (Mwh) 29,885 

Fair value - asset $987,553 

Fair value - liability $30,977 

Reference rates Mid-C index 

Dates entered into 12/19-12/21 

Dates of maturity 1/22-12/23 

Option Premiums $0 

The fair values used for mark-to-market amounts are based on the future price curve for the Mid
Columbia Intercontinental Exchange. 

The District has developed a credit policy that establishes guidelines for setting credit limits and 
monitoring credit exposure on a continuous basis. The policy addresses frequency of counterparty credit 
evaluations, credit limits per specific counterparty and counterparty credit concentration limits. 
Commodity transactions, both physical and financial, are entered into only with counterparties approved 
by the District's Risk Management Committee for creditworthiness. The District has entered into master 
enabling agreements with various counterparties, such as International Swaps and 
Derivatives Association (ISDA) Agreements for financial transactions. All of the enabling agreements 
have provisions addressing credit exposure and provide for various remedies to assure financial 
performance, including the ability to call on additional collateral as conditions warrant, generally as 
determined by the exposed party. The District also uses netting provisions in the agreements to diffuse a 
portion of the risk. 

The District proactively works to eliminate or minimize basis risk on energy transactions by entering 
into derivative transactions that settle pursuant to an index derived from market transactions at the point 
physical delivery is expected to take place. There are no derivative transactions outstanding that carry 
basis risk as of December 31, 2021. As of December 31, 2021, no tennination events have occurred, and 
there are no outstanding transactions with material tennination risk. There is no rollover, interest rate or 
market access risk for these derivative products at December 31, 2021. 
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Electric, Water and Telecommunications plant activity for the year ended December 31, 2021, is as 
follows: 

Combined Utility 
Beginning 

Additions Removals 
Ending 

Balance Balance 

Utility Plant Not Being 
Depreciated: 

Land 1,003,721 0 0 1,003,721 

Construction in Progress 2,999,179 3,288,730 (2,299,058) 3,988,851 

Total 4,002,900 3,288,730 (2,299,058) 4,992,572 

Utility Plant Being Depreciated: 

Transmission Plant 4,774,263 0 0 4,774,263 

Distribution Plant 82,274,407 1,630,362 (133,453) 83,771,316 

General Plant 13,279,560 370,386 (140,370) 13,509,576 

Water Plant 2,554,145 92,272 0 2,646,417 

Telecom Plant 13,747,786 377,526 (68,793) 14,056,519 

Total 116,630,161 2,470,546 (342,616) 118,758,091 

Less: Accum. Depreciation (68,281,425) (3,578,810) 522,126 (71,338,109) 

Total Net Utility Plant 52,351,636 2,180,466 (2,119,548) 52,412,554 

ELECTRIC 
Beginning 

Additions Removals 
Ending 

Balance Balance 

Utility Plant Not Being 
Depreciated: 

Land 862,976 0 0 862,976 

Construction in Progress 2,598,010 2,742,428 (1,848,430) 3,492,008 

Total 3,460,986 2,742,428 (1,848,430) 4,354,984 

Utility Plant Being Depreciated: 

Transmission Plant 4,774,263 0 0 4,774,263 

Distribution Plant 82,274,407 1,630,362 (133,452) 83,771,317 

General Plant 13,286,632 363,314 (140,370) 13,509,576 

Total 100,335,302 1,993,676 (273,822) 102,055,156 

Less: Accum. Depreciation (62,019,242) (2,936,528) 369,275 (64,586,496) 

Total Net Utility Plant 41,777,046 1,799,576 (1,752,977) 41,823,644 
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Water 
Beginning 

Additions Removals 
Ending 

Balance Balance 

Utility Plant Not Being 
Depreciated: 

Land 140,745 0 0 140,745 

Construction in Progress 82,328 9,944 (92,272) (0) 

Total 223,073 9,944 (92,272) 140,745 

Utility Plant Being Depreciated: 

Supply Plant 263,883 0 0 263,883 

Pumping Plant 554,254 0 0 554,254 

Treatment Plant 88,905 0 0 88,905 

Distribution Plant 1,574,358 92,272 0 1,666,630 

General Plant 65,673 7,072 0 72,745 

Total 2,547,073 99,344 0 2,646,417 

Less: Accum. Depreciation (939,007) (69,925) 0 (1,008,932) 

Total Net Utility Plant 1,831,139 39,363 (92,272) 1,778,230 

Telcom 
Beginning 

Additions Removals 
Ending 

Balance Balance 

Utility Plant Not Being 
Depreciated: 

Construction in Progress 318,840 536,359 (358,356) 496,843 

Total 318,840 536,359 (358,356) 496,843 

Utility Plant Being Depreciated: 

Telecom Distributions 10,350,205 339,739 (3,297) 10,686,647 

General Plant 3,397,581 37,786 (65,496) 3,369,871 

Total 13,747,786 377,525 (68,793) 14,056,518 

Less: Accum. Depreciation (5,323,176) (572,357) 152,852 (5,742,681) 

Total Net Utility Plant 8,743,450 341,527 (274,297) 8,810,680 

The District is an electric utility and is guided by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission's (FERC) 

financial reporting. According to the FERC electric plant instruction 10 paragraph B(2), "If the 

retirement unit is of a depreciable class, the book cost of the unit retired and credited to electric plant 

shall be charged to the accumulated provision for depreciation applicable to such property. The cost of 

removal and the salvage shall be charged or credited, as appropriate, to such depreciation account." As a 

result of this accounting method, the decrease in accumulated depreciation for a given class of capital 

assets may exceed the decrease for those assets. 
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NOTE 5 – LEASES 
The District is committed under annual operating leases for postal mailing equipment.  Lease expense 
for the year ended December 31, 2021, amounted to $14,116.  These leases renew on a 60-month basis 
with the most recent renewal in March 2021. 

The District had no capital leases during 2021. 

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT 
Revenue Bonds 
In April 2014 the District issued $10.0 million in Tax Exempt, Bank Qualified Electric System Revenue 
Bonds (2014A) to fund capital improvements, pay for bond issuance costs (including bond insurance) 
and fund bond debt service and reserve accounts ($850,374). Principal payments on these bonds begin in 
September 2019, maturing annually in varying amounts through September 2033. The bonds have 
annual interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%.  

In April 2014 the District issued $4.67 million in Taxable Electric System Revenue Bonds (2014B) to 
fund capital improvements, pay for bond issuance costs (including bond insurance) and fund bond debt 
service and reserve accounts ($397,124). Principal payments on these bonds began in September 2015, 
maturing annually in varying amounts through September 2019. The bonds have annual interest rates 
ranging from 1.00% to 2.42%.  

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the following changes occurred in long-term debt: 

Electric and Water 
Beginning 
Balance 

Additions Reductions 
Ending 
Balance 

Amount 
Due 

Within 
One Year 

2014A (BQ) Electric Revenue Bonds, 
interest at 3.00% -5.00%, maturing in 
2033; Original Issue amount: 
$10,000,000 

8,920,000  (1,030,000) 7,890,000  1,065,000  

DWSRF Loan - Bay Center Water, 
interest at .5%, maturing in 2024; 
Original Issue amount: $462,091 

97,282  (24,321) 72,961  
24,321 

Subtotal 9,017,282  0  (1,054,321) 7,962,961  1,089,321  

Plus: Unamortized Premium 488,729  (38,580) 450,149  - 
Totals 9,506,011  0  (1,092,901) 8,413,110  1,089,321 

Other Long-Term Liability 
Net Pension Liability 1,788,783  (1,354,256) 434,527  
Net OPEB Liability 34,013,696 567,470  34,581,166 
Compensated Absences 744,436     901,326 (879,448) 766,314  424,151  
Other Liabilities 979,022  (119,747)  859,275  

37,525,937 1,468,796  (2,353,451) 36,641,282 424,151 
Total Long-Term Debt/Liability 47,031,948 1,468,796 (3,446,352) 45,054,392  1,513,472 

Water Debt has been listed separately in the below table.  All other long-term debt and liabilities are 
recognized as Electric liabilities. 
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Amount 

Water 
Beginning 

Additions Reductions 
Ending Due 

Balance Balance Within 
One Year 

DWSRF Loan - Bay Center Water, 
interest at .5%, maturing in 2024; 97,282 (24,321) 72,961 24,321 
OriQinal Issue amount: $462,091 

Scheduled principal maturities and interest requirements on the Revenue Bonds are as follows: 

Year Principal Interest Total 

2022 1,065,000 334,650 1,399,650 

2023 1,105,000 292,050 1,397,050 

2024 475,000 247,850 722,850 

2025 495,000 228,850 723,850 

2026 510,000 209,050 719,050 

2027-2031 2,900,000 707,800 3,607,800 

2032-2033 1,340,000 101,250 1,441,250 

Total 7,890,000 2,121,500 10,011,500 

Scheduled principal maturities and interest requirements on the DWSRF are as follows: 

Year Principal Interest Total 

2022 24,321 365 24,686 

2023 24,320 243 24,563 

2024 24,320 122 24,442 

Total 72,961 730 73,691 

In accordance with Bond Resolutions and the Official Bond Statements, separate restricted fund 
accounts are required to be established. The assets held in these fund accounts are restricted for specific 
uses, including debt service and other specific uses. The current board of commissioners has given a 
directive to pay off the Bonds and Drinking Water State Revolving Funds in 2024. 

Applicability of Federal Arbitrage Regulations 

Certain debt issuances of the District issued after the Tax Refonn Act of 1986 are subject to the federal 
arbitrage regulations. The arbitrage rebate regulations require that all earnings from the investment of 
gross proceeds of an issue in excess of the amount that could have been earned had the yield on the 
investment been equal to the yield on the bonds be remitted to the federal government. These carry strict 
penalties for noncompliance including taxability of interest retroactive to the date of the issue. The 
District's management believes it is in compliance with these rules and regulations. 

Intersystem Loan to Lebam Water System 

In January of 2019 the District combined the Electric System and the three Water Systems to form one 
combined Utility System. 
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In 2004, the Electric Department issued a $50,000 Long Term loan to the Lebam Water System to help 
cover startup costs associated with the new system. The Lebam Water System incurred negative cash 
flow and operating losses for several years. A combined total of $160,852 was owed to the Electric 
System on December 31, 2019, when the water and electric systems were consolidated. Lebam Water 
customers pay a monthly $16 surcharge to repay the balance due to the Electric System. The balanced 
owed as of December 31, 2021, is $124,768. The loan and the corresponding receivable are eliminated 
in the combined financial statement and the amounts are not included in the totals presented in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN 

The following table represent the aggregate pension amount for all plans subject to the requirements of 
the GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions for the year 2021: 

Aggregate Pension Amounts for All Plans 2021 

Pension Asset 4,554,248 

Pension Liabilities (434,527) 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 529,516 

Deferred Inflows of Resources (4,804,577) 

Pension Expense/Expenditures (1,105,541) 

State Sponsored Pension Plans 

Substantially all District full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the following 
statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems, 
under cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution 
retirement plans. The state Legislature establishes, and amends, laws pertaining to the creation and 
administration of all public retirement systems. 

The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State 
of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (ACFR) that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS ACFR may be 
obtained by writing to: 

Department of Retirement Systems 
Communications Unit 
P.O. Box 48380 
Olympia, WA 98540-8380 

or, the DRS ACFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov. 

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) 

PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals and 
Superior Courts; employees of the legislature; employees of district and municipal courts; employees of 
local governments; and higher education employees not participating in higher education retirement 
programs. PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans for membership purposes. PERS plans 1 
and 2 are defined benefit plans, and PERS plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution 
component. 
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PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as 
two percent of the member's average final compensation (AFC) times the member's years of service. 
The AFC is the average of the member's 24 highest consecutive service months. Members are eligible 
for retirement from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 
years of service, or at age 60 with at least five years of service. Members retiring from active status 
prior to the age of 65 may receive actuarially reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially 
reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability 
payments, an optional cost-of-living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if 
found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries. PERS 1 members were vested after the 
completion of five years of eligible service. The plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 
1977. 

Contributions 

The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent. The employer 
contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an administrative expense 
component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council 
adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates. The PERS Plan 1 required contribution rates ( expressed as a 
percentage of covered payroll) for 2021 are as follows: 

PERS Plan 1 - Jan thru June 2021 

Actual Contribution Rates: Employer Employee 

PERS Plan 1 7.92% 6.00% 

PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.87% 

Administrative Fee 0.18% 

Total 12.97% 6.00% 

PERS Plan 1 - July thru December 2021 

Actual Contribution Rates: Employer Employee 

PERS Plan 1 10.07% 6.00% 

Administrative Fee 0.18% 

Total 10.25% 6.00% 

The District's actual contributions to the plan was $240,583 for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as 
two percent of the member's average final compensation (AFC) times the member's years of service for 
Plan 2 and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the average of the member's 60 highest-paid 
consecutive service months. There is no cap on years of service credit. Members are eligible for 
retirement with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of service credit. Retirement before age 65 is 
considered an early retirement. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have at least 20 years of service credit and 
are 55 years of age or older, are eligible for early retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor 
that varies according to age for each year before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more 
years of service credit and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions: 

• With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or
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• With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter
return-to-work rules.

PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting a 
reduction of five percent for each year ofretirement before age 65. This option is available only to those 
who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit. PERS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits 
are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other PERS Plan 2/3 benefits 
include duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at 
three percent annually and a one-time duty related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of 
Labor and Industries. PERS 2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 
3 members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five 
years of service if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44. 

PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and 
investment earnings on those contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution rate upon 
joining membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers. As established by 
statute, Plan 3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5 percent and escalate to 15 
percent with a choice of six options. Employers do not contribute to the defined contribution benefits. 
PERS Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan. 

Contributions 

The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State 
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3 employer rates 
include a component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an administrative expense that is currently 
set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 2 employer and 
employee contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS Plan 2/3 required contribution 
rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2021 are as follows: 

PERS Plan 2/3 - Jan thru June 2021 

Actual Contribution Rates: Employer Employee 

PERS Plan 2 7.92% 7.9% 

PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.87% 

Administrative Fee 0.18% varies 

Total 12.97% 7.9% 

PERS Plan 2/3 - July thru December 2021 

Actual Contribution Rates: Employer Employee 

PERS Plan 2 6.36% 6.36% 

PERS Plan 1 UAAL 3.71% 

Administrative Fee 0.18% varies 

Total 10.25% 76.36% 

Both the District and its employees made the required contributions during fiscal years 2021. The 
District's actual contributions to the plan was 400,586 for the year ended December 31, 2021. 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent 
actuarial valuation completed in 2021 with a June 30, 2020 valuation date. The actuarial assumptions 
used in the valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary's (OSA) 2013-2018 
Demographic Experience Study and the 2019 Economic Experience Study. 

Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2021 actuarial 
valuation report. The TPL was calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to the measurement 
date of June 30, 2021. Plan liabilities were rolled forward from June 30, 2020, to June 30, 2021, 
reflecting each plan's normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed interest and actual benefit 
payments. 

• Inflation: 2.75% total economic inflation; 3.50% salary inflation

• Salary increases: In addition to the base 3.50% salary inflation assumption, salaries are also
expected to grow by promotions and longevity.

• Investment rate of return: 7.4%

Mortality rates were developed using the Society of Actuaries' Pub. H-2010 mortality rates, which vary 
by member status, as the base table. The OSA applied age offsets for each system, as appropriate, to 
better tailor the mortality rates to the demographics of each plan. OSA applied the long-term MP-2017 
generational improvement scale, also developed by the Society of Actuaries, to project mortality rates 
for every year after the 2010 base table. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, 
each member is assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year throughout 
their lifetime. 

There were no changes in assumptions since the last valuation. There were changes in methods since the 
last valuation. 

• For purposes of the June 30, 2020 Actuarial Valuation Report (AVR), a non-
contribution rate setting valuation under current funding policy, the Office of the State Actuary 
(OSA) introduced temporary method changes to produce asset and liability measures as of the 
valuation date. See high-level summary below. OSA will revert back to the methods outlined in 
the 2019 A VR when preparing the 2021 A VR, a contribution rate-setting valuation, which will 
serve as the basis for 2022 ACFR results. 

• To produce measures at June 30, 2020, unless otherwise noted in the 2020 A VR,
OSA relied on the same data, assets, methods, and assumptions as the June 30, 2019 AVR. OSA 
projected the data forward one year reflecting assumed new hires and current members exiting 
the plan as expected. OSA estimated June 30, 2020, assets by relying on the fiscal year end 2019 
assets, reflecting actual investment performance over FY 2020, and reflecting assumed 
contribution amounts and benefit payments during FY 2020. OSA reviewed the actual June 30, 
2020, participant and financial data to determine if any material changes to projection 

31



assumptions were necessary. OSA also considered any material impacts to the plans from 2021 
legislation. See the 2020 A VR for more information. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.4%. 

To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether each pension plan's 
fiduciary net position was sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan 
members. Based on the assumptions described in OSA's certification letter within the DRS CAFR, the 
pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7 .40% was used 
to determine the total liability. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate ofreturn on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.4 percent was 
determined using a building-block-method. In selecting this assumption, the OSA reviewed the 
historical experience data, considered the historical conditions that produced past annual investment 
returns, and considered Capital Market Assumptions (CMA's) and simulated expected investment 
returns provided by the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). The WSIB uses the CMA's and 
their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns at various future times. 

Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class·included in the pension plan's 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021, are summarized in the table below. The inflation component 
used to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the WSIB's most recent long-term estimate of broad 
economic inflation. 

% Long-Term 

Asset Class Target Expected Real Rate 

Allocation of Return 

Arithmetic 

Fixed Income 20% 2.20% 
Tangible Assets 7% 5.10% 
Real Estate 18% 5.80% 
Global Equity 32% 6.30% 
Private Equity 23% 9.30% 

100% 

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 

The table below presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability(asset) calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.4%, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.4%) or 1-
percentage point higher (8.4%) than the current rate. 
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1% Decrease (6.4%) Current Discount Rate (7.4%) 1% Increase (8.4%) 

PERS 1 740,242 434,527 167,913 

PERS 2/3 (1,297,417) (4,554,248) (7,236,251) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the State's pension plans' fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued DRS financial report. 

Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a total pension liability of $1,788,783 for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liabilities. 

Liability (or Asset) 

PERS 1 434,527 

PERS 2/3 (4,554,248) 

TOTAL (4,119,721) 

The District's proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities are: 

·� 

Proportionate Proportionate Change in 

Share 6/30/2020 Share 6/30/2021 Proportion 

PERS 1 0.034423% 0.035581% 0.001158% 

PERS 2/3 0.044839% 0.045718% 0.000879% 

Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended June 30 
are used as the basis for determining each employer's proportionate share of the collective pension 
amounts reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations for all plans. 

The collective net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the actuarial valuation 
date on which the total pension liability (asset) is based was as of June 30, 2017, with update procedures 
used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date. 

Pension Expense 

For the year ended December 31, 20201, the District recognized pension expense as follows: 

Pension Expense 

PERS 1 (39,305) 

PERS 2/3 (1,066,236) 

TOTAL (1,105,541) 
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

At December 31, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

PERS 1 
Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0 

Net difference between projected and actual 
0 (482,180) 

investment earnings on pension plan investments 

Changes of Assumptions 0 0 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
0 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 105,890 

Total 1 105,890 (482,180) 

PERS 2/3 
Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience 221,193 (55,831) 

Net difference between projected and actual 
0 (3,806,283) 

investment earnings on pension plan investments 

Changes of Assumptions 6,655 (323,427) 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
14,258 (138,581) 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 181,519 0 

Total 2/3 423,625 (4,324,122) 

Total All Funds 529,515 (4,806,302) 

Deferred outflows ofresources related to pensions resulting from the District's contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
December 31, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, PERS 1 PERS 2/3 

2022 (127,730) (1,075,609) 

2023 (117,047) (1,007,222) 

2024 (110,672) (958,410) 

2025 (126,731) (1,024,214) 

2026 (19,705) 

Thereafter 3,144 

TOTAL (482,180) (4,082,016) 

The District's payroll subject to PERS plans for the years ended December 31, 2020, and December 31, 
2021 were $5,359,523 and $5,619,470. 
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Deferred Compensation Plans 

By resolution, the District offers its employees two deferred compensation plans created in accordance 

with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. These plans are with Empower Retirement and the 

Washington State Department of Retirement Systems (DRS) Deferred Compensation Program (DCP). 

The plans, available to all active employees, permit them to defer a portion of their salary until future 

years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or 

unforeseeable emergency. 

The IRC of 1986, as amended, required the District to establish a trust exempt from tax under IRC 

Section 457 (g) and 501 (a). A trust was established with each of the plan administrators and the plan is 

operated for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. The assets in the plans are 

not subject to any claims of the District's general creditors. The District has no liability for losses under 

the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. 

Participation in the Districts deferred compensation plans is voluntary on the part of the employee. 

Contributions to these plans are 100% employee funded. 

NOTE 8- PARTICIPATION IN NORTHWEST OPEN ACCESS NETWORK, INC. 

The District, along with eight other Washington State public utility districts and Energy Northwest, is a 
founding member of Northwest Open Access Network (NoaNet), a Washington nonprofit mutual 
corporation. NoaNet was incorporated in February 2000 to provide a broadband communications 
backbone over public benefit fiber leased from the Bonneville Power Administration. This 
communications backbone throughout Washington assists its members in the efficient management of 
load, conservation, and acquisition of electric energy as well as other purposes. The network began 
commercial operation in January 2001 

The District's membership interest in NoaNet is 8.19 percent. The management ofNoaNet anticipates 
meeting its bond debt obligations through profitable operations. NoaNet reserves the right to assess 
members to cover deficits from operations. There have been no member assessments since 2011. 

NoaNet recorded a decrease in net position of ($1,152,954) in 2021. In accordance with Accounting 
Principles Board Opinion No. 18, The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock, 
as well as a position statement issued by the Washington State Auditor concerning the appropriate 
accounting treatment for NoaNet, a proportionate share of the changes in net position has not been 
recorded by the District. NoaNet had positive net position of $44,828,963 as of December 31, 2021. 

As a member ofNoaNet, and in accordance with Interlocal Cooperation Act, RCW 39.34, members are 
pennitted to enter into agreements for joint or cooperative actions and undertakings, including the 
financing thereof. In March 2019, eight N oaN et members agreed to provide bridge financing in the 
amount of$1,560,000 for certain capital expenditures ofNoaNet. The District's funding commitment 
under the agreement is 12.82 percent or $200,000. In October 2019, the first draw was approved in the 
amount of $665,000 with the District's share equaling $85,256. The District remitted payment to 
NoaNet in October 2019 and recorded a Note Receivable. In June of 2020, a second draw was approved 
for the remaining amount of $895,000 with the District's share equaling $114,739. In 2020, the District 
recorded $7,098 of interest income in accordance with the repayment terms of the agreement. 
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In December 2020, NoaNet issued $24,775,000 in Telecommunications Network Revenue Bonds (2020 
Bonds) to finance capital improvements and other expenses, repay loans and a line of credit, fund a 
reserve account, and pay bond issuance costs. With the 2020 Bond, NoaNet paid the outstanding 
principal of $179,996 on this bridge financing leaving a zero-amount owing at year end 2020. 

Financial statements for NoaNet may be obtained by writing to: Northwest Open Access Network, 
Corporate Office, 5802 Overlook Avenue NE, Tacoma, WA 98422. Their website is available at 
www.noanet.net. 

NOTE 9 - TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES 

The District began installation of fiber-optic communications for utility use after examining 
infrastructure that could be used to deliver advanced telecommunications services. The research 
revealed that fiber-optic cable provides a robust and cost-effective network system. Fiber has a long-life 
cycle and almost unlimited bandwidth capacity, which allows the District to migrate to new technologies 
without replacing expensive plant infrastructure. The fiber-optic network provides a backbone for the 
District's utility communications, Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition, communications with 
other utilities, data transmissions via NoaNet, and automated meter infrastructure. 

With the passage of wholesale telecommunications authority in 2000 by the Washington State 
Legislature, highspeed communication capability was brought to Pacific County. In July of 2003, the 
District connected its fiber optic system to the NoaNet fiber optic communications system and began 
making excess capacity available at wholesale rates to retail service providers. 

The District continues to build out its fiber-optic network to meet its data needs, and to share the benefit 
of the technology investment. The District is a wholesaler for private service providers and bills the 
providers directly for wholesale telecommunications services. The District does not currently have plans 
to provide retail service as has been authorized through the recently passed HB 1336 but would like to 
expand relationships with the current service providers to reach the unserved and underserved areas of 
the county. These private service providers are directly responsible for billing each end-user. These 
retail providers are in tum offering end users access to the District's fiber for Internet and point-to-point 
interconnections on a retail basis. 

District staff and the Board of Commissioners have taken advantage of opportunities available to help 
provide broadband service to the unserved and underserved areas of Pacific County. 

In December 2021, the District received notification from the Washington State Public Works Board 
that it will be the recipient of a $5 million grant to build out underground fiber option-based broadband 
in the Bay Center, Lynn Point, Wilson Point, and Nemah areas. The District currently has core fiber all 
through the project area and going down Highway 101. The new fiber installation will allow for delivery 
of fiber services to the homeowner. The projected project will take a minimum of two years to complete. 

Another application process was started with the Washington State Broadband Office (WSBO) for the 
same area mentioned above along with the addition of Chinook. Working with the Shoal water Tribe, 
the District has helped the Tribe to apply for funding through the NTIA Tribal Program. The District 
was not awarded the WSBO grant but plans to resubmit our request in Phase II of the program. 
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In November the District began the application process for nearly $19 million in funding from the 

USDA Rural Development Broadband Reconnect Program to cover the areas of Brooklyn, Vesta, Smith 
Creek, Ward Creek, Elkhorn Road, Mallis Landing Road to South Fork, and South of South Bend on 
101 to Wilson Point. The District submitted the application in March 2022. 

Wholesale Telecommunications operations and capital activity for the years ended December 31, 2021. 

Telecommunication Services 2021 
Operating Revenues: 

Wholesale Fiber Services to ISP $510,649 
Installation CharQes (Capital Contributions) $38,447 

Other $116,688 
Total Revenues $665,784 

Operating Expenses: 

Administration and General $159,546 
Repairs and Maintenance ($3,636) 
Network Coordinated Services $57,738 
Interconnection Access $20,851 
Other $9,368 

Total Operating Expenses $243,867 

Plant in Service $14,056,518 

Construction Work in ProQress $496,843 

NOTE 10 - FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 

In December 2020, current Members ofNoaNet entered into a Repayment Agreement to guarantee the 10-
year, $24,775,000 Telecommunications Network Revenue Bonds (2020 Bonds) issued by NoaNet to 
finance capital improvements and other expenses, repay loans and a line of credit, fund a reserve account, 
and pay bond issuance costs. The 2020 Bonds will become due beginning in December 2021 through 
December 2030 with interest due semi-annually at rates ranging from 0.591 percent to 2.120 percent. 

The 2020 Bonds were issued and guaranteed pursuant to RCW chapters 24.06 and 39.34 and Title 54. 
Under the Repayment Agreement, each guarantor acknowledged and agreed that it is a guarantor of the 

payment of the principal and interest on the 2020 Bonds and was liable by assessment or otherwise to 

repay NoaNet for amounts due and owing with respect to such principal and interest up to each Member's 
agreed upon percentage interest. The District's guarantee was 10.0 percent of the outstanding Bonds. 

To the extent NoaNet's gross revenue is insufficient to pay principal and interest amounts when due, 
NoaNet shall bill each guarantor no less than 65 days in advance of each principal and interest payment 

date for its percentage share. Each guarantor has 30 days to pay after receipt of the bill. In event of a 
failure by any guarantor to pay such amounts when due, the guarantor shall be subject to all remedies as 
contained in NoaNet's bylaws. Each guarantor shall remain obligated to pay its respective share of 

principal and interest on the 2020 Bonds, when due, whether or not it remains a member ofNoaNet. 
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In 2021, Noanet had sufficient gross revenue to pay principal and interest on their 2020 Bonds. In the 
event Noanet is more likely than not able to pay the principal and interest on these bonds, the District's 
financial guarantee would be $2,253,000. 

NOTE 11 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

Plan Description 

In accordance with collective bargaining agreements, the District provides employer paid post

retirement medical, vision, prescription and dental benefits for qualified retired employees and their 

eligible dependents. For employees retiring before September 1, 2009 the District contributes the 

percentage of the annual cost that was paid at the time of their retirement, this percentage ranges from 
95% to 100%. For employees retiring after September 1, 2009, the District pays the same percentage of 
annual cost that it contributes for active employees, currently 95%. The benefits are provided through 
the Public Utility Risk Management Services (PURMS). 

The plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and there are no assets accumulated in a qualifying trust. 

As of December 31, 2021, the following employees were covered under the plan: 

Plan Basis 

Active participants 
Retired employees 

Total participants 

58 
47 

105 

The District contracted with Milliman to provide actuarial services for the District's OPEB Plan 
valuation and year end reporting. Milliman certifies "that their report is complete and has been prepared 
in accordance with generally recognized accepted actuarial principles and practices. Milliman is a 
member of the American Academy of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards to render 
actuarial opinions. Milliman has developed models to estimate the values included in this report. The 
intent of the models is to estimate retiree medical claims costs by age and gender and annual trends for 
retiree medical benefits. The report relies upon the expertise of Milliman healthcare and retirement 
actuaries. They have reviewed the models, including their inputs, calculations, and outputs for 
consistency, reasonableness, and appropriateness to the intended purpose and in compliance with 
generally accepted actuarial practice and relevant actuarial standards of practice (ASOP). 

This valuation report is only an estimate of the plan's financial condition as of a single date. It can 
neither predict the plan's future condition nor guarantee future financial soundness. Actuarial valuations 
do not affect the ultimate cost of plan benefits, only the timing of plan contributions. 

The calendar year 2020 cost experience has been excluded when developing the claims costs 
assumptions due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. There continues to be a substantial amount 
of uncertainty regarding the impact of COVID-19 on plan costs, including whether the pandemic will 
increase or decrease costs during the term of the projections. It is possible that the COVID-19 pandemic 
could have a material impact on the projected costs. 
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Funding Policy 

The District funds its post-retirement health care benefits when the actual health care costs are incurred 

for retirees and their eligible dependents. The District is currently evaluating the option of pre-funding 

all or a portion of the actuarial calculated total OPEB liability, but no decision has been made. 

Change in total OPEB Liability 

The following table shows the components for the District's changes in Total OPEB Liability. 

Changes in Total OPES Liability 
Increase (decrease) in total OPES 

Liability 

Balance as of December 31, 2019 $34,829,634 

Changes for the year: 

Service Cost 1,123,338 

Interest on Total OPEB liability 974,008 

Effect of plan changes 0 

Effect of economic/demographic gains or 
(2,241,900) 

losses 

Effect of assumptions, changes, or inputs 712,024 

Expected benefit payments (815,938) 

Balance as of December 31, 2020 34,581,166 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability in the actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions: 

Valuation Date 
Measurement Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Discount Rate 

Inflation 

Projected Salary Increase 

Aggregate OPES Amounts for All 

Plans 

OPEB Liabilities 

OPEB Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

OPEB expenses/expenditures 

January 1, 2021 
December 31, 2020 
Entry Age 

2.12% 

2.20% 

2.95% 

Balances as of December 31, 2020 

$34,581,166 

0 

6,150,419 

12,485,497 

364,724 
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Mortality Rates 

Rates are based on the Public Plan headcount-weighted mortality tables projected forward using Scale 

MP-2017 Long-Term Rates on a generational basis, with sex-distinct Employee rates before 

commencement and Retiree and Contingent Survivor rates (as appropriate) after benefit commencement. 

Retiree and Contingent tables are blended for beneficiaries. 

Health Care Cost Increases or Trend Rates 

The health care cost is based on the published report by the Society of Actuaries (SOA) on long-term 

medical trend. That report includes detailed research performed by a committee of economists and 

actuaries (including a Milliman representative) and proposes the use of the "Getzen Model" named after 

the professor who developed the model. 

It is believed that the research and the model are fundamentally and technically sound and advance the 

body of knowledge available to actuaries to more accurately project long-term medical trends. Milliman 

has used that model as the foundation for the trend valuations. These trend rates assume that over time, 

deductibles and out of pocket maximums will be periodically increased as medical trends increase. 

Trend starts at 5.8% for retirees that are under age 65 and changes to 5.5% after age 65. The trend then 

settles to an ultimate rate of 3. 7%. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District as of December 31, 2020, calculated using 

both the discount rate of 2.12 % as well as what the District's total OPEB liability would be if it were 

calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.12%) or 1 percentage point higher 

(3.12%) than the current rate. 

1% Decrease 1.12% 1% Decrease 2.12% 1% Decrease 3.12% 

Total OPEB Liability $41,818,530 $34,581,166 $28,959,700 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District as of December 31, 2020, calculated using 

the current healthcare cost trend rates as well as what the employer's total OPEB liability would be if it 

were calculated using trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percental point higher than the 

current trend rates. 

1% Decrease 1.12% 1% Decrease 2.12% 1% Decrease 3.12% 

Total OPEB Liability $41,818,530 $34,581,166 $28,959,700 
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OPEB Expense for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021 

Measurement Period Jan 1st - Dec 31st, 2020 

Service Cost $1,123,338 

Interest on total OPEB liability 974,008 

Effect of plan changes 0 

Recognition of deferred inflows/outflows: 

Recognition of economic/demographic gains or losses (838,792) 

Recognition of assumption changes or inputs (893,830) 

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 364,724 

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources 

As of the December 21, 2020 Measurement Date, the deferred inflows and outflows of resources are as 

follows: 

Deferred Inflows of Deferred Outflows of 

Resources Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience ($3,995,715) $0 

Changes of Assumptions or Inputs (8,489,782) 5,366,101 

Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 0 784,318 

Total (12,485,497) 6,150,419 

Deferred outflows of resources are reported for benefits that come due subsequent to the measurement 

date, but prior to the reporting date. Per GASB these amounts are not reported in the schedule below. 

Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 

to OPEB will be recognized in the OPEB expense below. Additional future deferred inflows and 

outflows or resources may impact the numbers. 

Measurement Period Ending December 31: OPEB Expense 

2021 ($1,732,622) 

2022 (1,732,622) 

2023 (1,732,624) 

2024 (2,135,784) 

2025 432,814 

Thereafter (218,558) 
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HRA VEBA 

In 2006, the Commissioners approved Resolution No. 1248 authorizing part1c1pation in a Health 

Reimbursement Arrangement / Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association Plan., as allowed under 

IRS Code section 50l(C)(9). 

Under the plan, the District participates in the Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association (VEBA) 

for Public Service Employees in the Northwest trust, commonly referred to as the HRA VEBA Plan that 

was established on October 21, 1992 for public sector employees with updated IRS letter of 

determination March 14, 2000. Contributions are made for the benefit of District employees under three 

different VEBA groups - for "A" Group or "B" Group IBEW Local Union No. 77 employees, and for 

non-union employees. 

The plan covers all District employees. All employees within their respective VEBA group contribute 

an amount as described in the plan's documentation. Contributions may be adjusted from time-to-time 

by a majority vote of the specific VEBA group. 

For 2021, employee contributions totaled $101,344 and the District contributed an additional $42,103 in 
2021 on behalf of its employees. 

NOTE 12 - PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS 

Public Utility Risk Management Services (PURMS) 

The District is a member of the Public Utility Risk Management Services (PURMS) formerly known as 
the Washington Public Utility District's Utilities System Joint Selflnsurance Fund. RCW 48.62 
authorizes the governing body of any one or more governmental entities to form together into or join a 
pool or organization for the joint purchasing of insurance, and/or joint self-insurance, and/or joint hiring 
or contracting for risk management services to the same extent that they may individually purchase 
insurance, self-hire, or hire or contract for risk management services. An agreement to form a pooling 
arrangement was made pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 39.34 RCW, the Interlocal Cooperation 
Act. The Pool was formed on December 31, 1976 when certain Washington State PUDs joined together 
by signing an Interlocal Governmental Agreement to pool their self-insured losses and jointly purchase 
insurance and administrative services. Twelve Districts have joined the Pool. 

The Pool operates under an Interlocal Agreement and Operational Rules. An elected commissioner from 
each member makes up the Board of Directors. They are the policy making body of the group. Two 
committees report directly to the Board. A staff person from each member and the Administrator are on 
these committees. 

In general, PURMS, via its members and its third-party Administrator, operates three separate Risk 
Pools known as the Liability Pool, Property Pool, and the Health and Welfare Pool. The members of 

each Risk Pool self-insure primary coverages for their members and jointly acquire excess or stop-loss 
insurance, all financed by assessments of the members pursuant to the Assessment Formula applicable 
to the particular Risk Pool ("Assessment"). Settlements in each risk pool have not exceeded insurance 
coverage in any of the past three years. 
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Liability Risk Pool 

PURMS provides liability insurance coverage for its members participating in the Liability Risk Pool, 
and to a limited extent for the benefit of their employees, under an agreement entitled "PURMS Joint 
Self-Insurance Agreement". The Liability Pool has a self-insured retention (Liability Coverage Limit) of 
$1 million per occurrence and mandatory participation in a first layer of Excess Liability Insurance in 
the amount of $3 5 million. The Liability Pool also offers an optional second layer of excess liability 
insurance in the amount of $65 million excess of $35 million and the Liability Pool's $1 million self
insured retention. In 2021, all Liability Pool Members participated in this second layer of Excess 
Liability Coverage. 

The Liability Pool also offers excess Director' and Officer's coverage for a subgroup of members of the 
Liability Pool who chose to participate in the coverage. For 2021, the Public Officials coverage was $35 
million excess of the liability coverage limit provided by the Liability Pool's $1 million coverage limit. 
All members chose to participate in this Excess D&O Coverage. 

Finally, in 2021, the Liability Pool maintained insurance coverage excess of its retention for its jointly 
self-insured Employment Practices Liability and Cyber Security Breach Coverages, in accordance with 
the tenns of the applicable policies. 

This Pool is financed through assessments of its members. These assessments occur at the beginning of 
each calendar year and at any time the Liability Pool Designated Balance falls below the designated $3.5 
million Liability Pool Balance by $500 thousand or more. 

As of December 31, 2021, there were 69 known incidents or unresolved liability claims pending against 
one or more members or former members of the Liability Pool. The total dollar amount of the risk posed 
by these claims to such members and to the Liability Pool itself is unknown and can only be estimated. 
The case reserves set by the administrator for these Claims, as of December 31, 2021, was $1,096,764. 
The Liability Pool's actual balance was replenished to the $3.5 million designated balance via the 
automatic annual assessment issued in January 2022. 

Commencing with fiscal year ending 2016, it is PURMS' policy to inform the members of its Risk Pools 

in writing of their respective share of the actuarially based "Claims Reserves Receivable" for the Risk 

Pool in which they participate ("CRR Allocation"), determined in accordance with a "10-Year Look
Back Period". 

PURMS' Administrator has calculated each Liability Pool Member's CRR Allocation for FY 2021, 
based on the 80 percent confidence level estimated by the 2021 Actuarial Report. The District's portion 
of the Liability Pool CRR Allocation for 2021 is $155,896. 

Property Risk Pool 

PURMS provides property insurance coverage for its members participating in the Property Risk Pool in 
accordance with the terms of the Selflnsurance Agreement (SIA). The Pool is governed by the same 
requirements contained in WAC 200-100-03001 as the Liability Pool. Under the SIA the Property Pool 
has a self-insured retention or (Property Coverage Limit) of $250 thousand per property loss. 
PURMS also maintains excess property insurance for its members in the Property Pool. For 2021, the 
amount of the excess property insurance was $200 million with excess coverage attaching at the $250 
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thousand property coverage limit for all property losses except those subject to increased retention levels 
for certain property risks. 

The Property Pool also provides its members with automatic extended property coverage for property 
losses that exceed the Property Pool's $250 thousand property coverage limit if those losses were also 
subject to increased retentions under the excess property insurance. Under the excess property insurance 
retentions in effect for 2021, the maximum exposure to the Property Pool from a property loss that 
exceeded $250 thousand, and that was subject to an increased retention, was $250 thousand, less the 
applicable deductible, or a maximum of $250 thousand more than the Property Coverage Limit. 

The Property Pool is funded to the amount of its Designated Property Pool balance, which in 2021 was 
$750 thousand. Of this amount, $250 thousand is used to pay claims costs as they are incurred and 
ongoing Property Pool operating expenses, including program administration. The $250 thousand of 
Operating Funds is replenished by assessments of property pool members. The amount of Cash Assets 
held for the Property Pool below the $250 thousand of Operating Funds is retained as reserves and held 
toward satisfying applicable regulatory funding requirements. 

The total paid for property claims in 2021 was $122,831, including claims adjustment expenses (but 
excluding Pool Operating Expenses). As of December 31, 2021, there were 14 known property claims 
pending from the members of the Property Pool. The total dollar amount of the risk posed by these 
claims to the Property Pool is unknown and can only be estimated. The case reserves set by the 
administrator for these claims, as of December 31, 2021, was $95,686. 

The Property Pool's actual balance was replenished to its $750 thousand designated balance via the 
automatic annual assessment issued in January 2022. The District's portion of the CRR Allocation for 
the Property Pool for the year ending December 31, 2021 is $14,117. 

Health & Welfare (H& W) Risk Pool 

PURMS provides health and welfare insurance coverage for the employees of each of its Members 
participating in the Health & Welfare (H& W) Risk Pool in accordance with the terms of the Health & 
Welfare Coverage of the SIA and the terms of each Member's respective Coverage Booklet provided to 
its Employees. 

The H&W Pools operations are financed through assessments of its Members under the H&W General 
Assessment Fonnula. Each month, each Member of the H&W Pool is assessed for the cost the H&W 
Pool incurred during the preceding month for such member's employees and for such member's share of 
Shared H&W Costs which includes administrative expenses, premiums for Stop-Loss Insurance, PPO 
charges and Shared H& W Claims. 

The exposure of each H&W Pool Member to the H&W Claims Costs of its employees is limited by two 
stop-loss points. The first pair of Stop-Loss Points is established annually by the Excess Stop-Loss 
Insurance that the H&W Pool acquires and maintains for its Members. These Stop-Loss Points represent 
the dollar amounts at which the Stop-Loss Insurance attaches and begins paying either the H&W Claim 
Costs for an individual employee's total medical claims for the year or the H& W Claims Costs of all 
employees of all members for the year. 
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For 2021, the H&W Pool Individual Stop-Loss Point was $365,000 per individual and the H&W Pool 
Aggregate Stop-Loss Point was $23,922,638 for the combined H&W Claims Costs of the employees of 
all members of the H&W Pool. 

In addition, each H&W Pool member's exposure to the H&W claims costs of its employees is further 
limited by even lower Stop-Loss Points determined by the H&W Pool for its members. Medical 
expenses that exceed these Stop-Loss Points become Shared H&W Claims and are paid by all H&W 
Pool members except the member whose employee's H&W Claim exceeded the applicable Stop-Loss 
Point. The member Stop-Loss Points are calculated annually under the H&W assessment formula. 

The total paid by the H&W Pool for H&W Claims Costs in 2021 was $15,076,038 (including shared 
H&W claims but excluding H&W pool operating expenses). The District's portion of the CRR 
Allocation for the H&W Pool for the year ending December 31, 2021 is $150,761. 

PURMS prepares an annual financial report. A copy of the report is available from: 
PURMS Joint Selflnsurance 
C/O Pacific Underwriters Corp. 
P O  Box 68787 
Seattle, Washington 98168 
or online at https://www.purms.org. 

District Official Bond 

The District also maintains with a commercial carrier, additional Crime Bond protection in the amount 
of $1 million per loss. The policy indemnifies any District official, required by law to give bonds for the 
faithful performance of their service, against loss through the failure of any employees under the 
official's supervision to faithfully perform his or her duties as prescribed by law, when such failure 
results in loss of money or property. 

Unemployment Insurance 

The District is self-insured for unemployment compensation, in that it reimburses the State of 

Washington for actual claims made. Unemployment claims are infrequent; the District recognized no 

unemployment compensation expense in 2021. 

NOTE 13-POWER SUPPLY 

BP A Power Contract 

In 1937, the Bonneville Project Act (Act) created the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) and 
directed it to market federally produced hydroelectric power to customers, giving preference and priority 

in power sales to public bodies and cooperatives. Public bodies include public utility districts, people's 

utility districts, tribal utilities, municipalities, and federal customers. The Act also authorized the BP A to 
provide, construct, operate, maintain, and improve transmission facilities to deliver federal power at 

cost. The BPA is part of the U.S. Department of Energy but is self-financing and receives no federal tax 
revenues. Costs are recovered by selling wholesale power, capacity, transmission, and related services at 

cost to utility, industrial, governmental, market, and transmission customers inside and outside of the 

region. About 28 percent of all power used in the Pacific Northwest is sold by the BP A. Its resources, 

primarily hydroelectric, make BP A power nearly carbon free. 
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The BPA uses its sales revenue to make annual payments to the U.S. Treasury for repayment of the 
federal investment in the Federal Columbia River Power System (FCRPS). Federal loans are paid back 
with interest. The BP A also funds recreation and fish and wildlife mitigation costs associated with the 
federal hydropower development in the Columbia River Basin. Approximately one-third of BPA's 
wholesale rate is associated with its fish and wildlife programs. BPA also provides capacity for 
integration of renewable generation resources within its balancing area. 

The BPA's function is to market wholesale electrical power over its transmission grid. The U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers and the Bureau of Reclamation operate and maintain 31 federal hydroelectric 

projects which constitute the backbone of the federal base system. In addition, BPA purchased and 
marketed Energy Northwest's Columbia Generation Station (CGS) at the cost of production under a 
formal net billing agreement. CGS is the Pacific Northwest's only nuclear power facility. The BPA 
owns and operates approximately 75 percent of the high-voltage transmission in its service territory. The 

BPA has nearly 5,100 MW of wind integrated into its transmission system; enough to power a city three 
times the size of Seattle. The BPA expects to connect another 3,000 to 4,000 MW of wind capacity to its 
system by 2025. The BPA balances the ups and downs of wind energy primarily with hydropower 
generated at federal dams. The BP A is working to find ways to do more with its resources and are 
expanding its access to other resources to balance wind energy. 

The District is a preference customer of the BP A which supplies the primary source of the District's 
power under a contract that was approved by the District's Board of Commissioners (Resolution No. 
1274) at its November 18, 2008 meeting. Resolution No. 1274 authorized the execution of a 
Slice/Block Power Sales Agreement with the BPA commencing on October 1, 2011 and expiring on 
September 30, 2028. 

These agreements incorporate provisions of the Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and 
Conservation Act of 1980 (Public Law 96-501) and the Bonneville Project Act of 193 7 such as 
preference and priority in the distribution and marketing of BP A's federal power to publicly owned 
preference customers, such as the District. The contract provides federal power in amounts based on the 
District's annual Net Requirements in the form of two products: Slice and Block. 

The Slice product provides for the combined sale of power services to the District based on the actual 
generation shape of the Federal Columbia River Power System (FCRPS). As a Slice purchaser, the 
District accepts the risk of fluctuations in the actual output of the FCRPS and accepts responsibility for 
managing its percentage share of the output to serve load. There is no guarantee that the amount of the 
Slice output, combined with Firm Requirements Power made available under Block are sufficient to 
meet the Districts native load at any given time. As part of the BP A agreement, the District agrees to 
meet its load with its own resources and/or purchases beyond what BP A supplies. 

The Block product provides power in pre-agreed upon flat, but shaped monthly amounts. The District's 
annual Block power rate for 2021 is $1,998,417 per 1 %. Our Block percentage is .23281. The rate for 
Block power is the lowest applicable Priority Firm Rate made available to BP A's preference customers. 
The Slice product provides the District with a 0.28159% share of the output of the FCRPS output made 
available to Slice customers. 
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The currently applicable base-rate for Slice purchases is $1,980,553 per month for each percent of Slice, 

with the adjusted base rate subject to an annual true up by BP A based upon updated actual costs 

allocated to the Slice System. Technical Operating Procedures have been established to provide Slice 

purchasers with the ability to calculate, schedule, and account for their share of Slice Output on an 

hourly basis. This product does not include transmission services. Moreover, by its nature, there is a 

greater degree of potential for exposure - and benefit - depending upon snow-pack amount and timing 

of runoff and other conditions that affect water, and therefore hydroelectric system output. 

BP A reserves the right to implement a Load Based Cost Recovery Adjustment Charge (LBCRAC). The 
current LBCRAC is 0%. 

BP A Transmission Services 

The District traditionally purchased bundled electric power and transmission services from BP A under 
the District's power purchase contract. However, in response to changes in Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission regulations in the late 1990s, BP A unbundled their electric power and transmission 
services, and required that transmission services be purchased separately. 

As a result of BP A unbundling its Power Services from Transmission Services, the District entered into 
a Service Agreement for Network Integration Transmission Service with BP A on June 8, 2001. This 

agreement is set to expire on October 1, 2031. The agreement specifies that the transmission is used to 
serve the District's Net Requirements Load. 

As a result of execution of the new Slice/Block Power Sales agreement, the District also executed a 

Point-to-Point Transmission (PTP) Service Agreement with BPA on September 8, 2011. The PTP 

agreement allows the District to move power and gives greater flexibility in transporting electricity. 

The Energy Authority 
The Energy Authority (TEA) provides professional power supply management services including 
wholesale market purchases and sales of electricity on behalf of the District. TEA also provides power 
scheduling services to the District. 

Power Market Risk Management Policies and Procedures 
In early 2010 the District commenced with a comprehensive assessment of its risk profile, and the 

development of policies and procedures for risk management and trading operations. The results of this 

effort, completed in September 2011, are detailed guidelines for considering and/or engaging in any 

Power Trading Agreements. The District's Risk Management Committee, with oversight and review by 

the Board of Commissioners, actively manages financial risk. The District periodically updates the risk 

management policy to incorporate improved procedures and practices. 

Total power cost for the year ending December 31, 2021, was $13,764,740. Power transmission cost for 

the year ending December 31, 2020, was $12,944,563. 
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NOTE 14-COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

In February 2020, the Governor of the state of Washington declared a state of emergency in response to 
the spread of COVID-19. Precautionary measures to slow the spread of the virus continued throughout 
2021. These measures included limitations on business operations, public events, gatherings, travel, and 
in-person interactions. The District proactively implemented a business continuity plan that included 
physical distancing with little to no disruptions in service. Management continues to monitor the 
situation for any operational or financial effects and is ready to respond appropriately as needed. To 
date, the District has experienced minor direct financial impacts due to the pandemic. The District 
continues to operate all major functions, meet its public mandates, has remained economically stable, 
and continues to adapt to changing conditions. 

NOTE 15-CONTINGENCIES 

Any pending or threatened lawsuits against the District are either adequately covered by insurance or 
would not materially affect the financial statements. 

NOTE 16-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On March 29, 2022, the Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) declared 
Washington's severe winter stonns from January 1, 2022, to January 15, 2022 a major disaster to certain 
counties in Washington including Pacific County. This declaration allows the District to submit for 
reimbursement of expenses incurred to repair facilities due to damages sustained during the storm 
timeframe. The District expects to request reimbursement of over $30,000 dollars. 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
PERS Plan 1 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

2021  2020  2019  2018  2017  2016  2015  2014 

Employer's portion of the 
net pension liability (asset)  0.035581%  0.034423%  0.036509%  0.038828%  0.039612%  0.041024%  0.040220%  0.039931% 

Employers Proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability  434,527  1,215,318  1,403,901   1,734,075   1,879,620    2,203,182      2,103,880    2,011,543  

Employers’ Covered 
Employee Payroll  5,483,853  5,254,274  5,114,662   5,158,918   5,012,859    4,918,736      4,611,316    4,422,412  

Employer's proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll  8%  23%  27%  34%  38%  45%  46%  46% 

Plan Fiduciary net position 
as a percentage of the total 
pension liability (DRS PEFI)  89%  69%  67%  63%  61%  57%  59%  61% 

Schedule of proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

PERS Plan 2/3 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

2021  2020  2019  2018  2017  2016  2015  2014 

Employer's portion of the 
net pension liability (asset)  0.045718%  0.044839%  0.047140%  0.049835%  0.050952%  0.052569%  0.040220%  0.039310% 

Employers Proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability (asset)  (4,554,248)  573,465         457,890         850,888      1,770,338    2,646,808     1,856,203    1,039,202 

Employers’ Covered 
Employee Payroll  5,483,853  5,254,274  5,114,662  5,158,918  5,012,859  4,918,736  4,611,316  4,422,412 

Employer's proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll  83%  11%  9%  16%  34%  54%  39%  23% 

Plan Fiduciary net position 
as a percentage of the total 
pension liability (DRS PEFI)  120%  97%  98%  96%  91%  86%  89%  93% 

 Notes to Schedules: 

 There are no factors at year‐end that significantly affect trends in the amounts reported above. 

* The Ten‐year information will be provided as it is available
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Statutorily required 
contributions 

Contributions in relation to 
Statutorily required 
contributions 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered employer payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll 

Statutorily required 
contributions 

Contributions in relation to 
Statutorily required 
contributions 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered emoloyer payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll 

Notes to Schedules: 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
PERS Plan 1 

2021 

240,583 

(240,583) 

-

5,619,470 

4.28% 

As of December 31, 2021 
Last 10 Fiscal Year 

2020 2019 2018 

257,111 253,804 260,933 

(257,111) (253,804) (260,933) 

- - -

5,359,523 5,135,907 5,153,410 

4.80% 4.94% 5.06% 

2017 

252,359 

(252,359) 

-

5,148,970 

4.90% 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
PERS Plan 2/3 

2021 

400,586 

(400,586) 

-

5,619,470 

7.13% 

As of December 31, 2021 

Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

2020 2019 2018 

424,475 396,672 386,505 

(424,475) (396,672) (386,505) 

- - -

5,359,523 5,135 907 5,153,410 

7.92% 7.72% 7.50% 

2017 

353,504 

(353,504) 

-

5,148,970 

6.87% 

2016 2015 

232,691 210,911 

(232,691) (210,911) 

- -

4,878,230 4,791,219 

4.77% 4.40% 

2016 2015 

303,914 271,015 

(303,914) (271,015) 

- -

4,878,230 4,791,219 

6.23% 5.66% 

There are no factors at year-end that significantly affect trends in the amounts reported above. 

* The Ten-year information will be provided as it is available

2014 

183,792 

(183,792) 

-

4,555,486 

4.03% 

2014 

227,569 

(227,569) 

-

4,555,486 

5.00% 
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2021 2020 2021 2020

RESIDENTIAL 20,388,178        20,766,378 1,687,527$        1,642,046$        

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 16,015            15,825

GREEN POWER 1,271$               1,368$               

COMMERCIAL 5,628,955          4,935,324 472,357$           412,640$           

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 1,536              1,526              

PUBLIC AUTHORITY 2,224,664          2,284,963 184,715$           191,350$           

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 454                  451

INDUSTRIAL 1,785,600          2,005,200 103,854$           108,687$           

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 1                      1

IRRIGATION 147                    147 4,266$               4,184$               

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 65                    65

PUBLIC LIGHTING 6,518                 7,135 6,406$               6,389$               

STREET & HIGHWAY LIGHTING 22,507               22,507 4,321$               3,983$               

-                         

TOTAL SALES 30,056,569        30,021,654        2,464,717$        2,370,647$        

TOTAL NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 18,071 17,868

SELF CONSUMED 65,221               59,050 -$                   -$                       

TOTAL 30,121,790        30,080,704        2,464,717$        2,370,647$        

KILOWATT HOURS BILLED REVENUE

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2 OF PACIFIC COUNTY

ELECTRIC BILLING STATISTICS

MONTH END DECEMBER
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2021 2020 2021 2020

RESIDENTIAL 195,714,216 186,890,102 16,858,197$        15,707,962$        

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

GREEN POWER 0 0 15,887$               16,995$               

COMMERCIAL 62,330,219 56,201,919 5,272,542$          4,747,582$          

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

PUBLIC AUTHORITY 25,278,435 25,069,108 2,086,486$          2,042,037$          

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

INDUSTRIAL 24,897,600 23,036,400 1,359,589$          1,233,968$          

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

IRRIGATION 841,022 716,859 97,727$               90,205$               

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

PUBLIC LIGHTING 82,237 89,222 75,104$               80,253$               

STREET & HIGHWAY LIGHTING 270,084 270,434 48,467$               47,870$               

TOTAL SALES 309,413,813 292,274,044 25,813,999$        23,966,872$        

TOTAL NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

SELF CONSUMED 691,911 682,472 -$                         -$                         

TOTAL 310,105,724 292,956,516 25,813,999$        23,966,872$        

ELECTRIC BILLING STATISTICS

YEAR-TO-DATE DECEMBER

REVENUEKILOWATT  HOURS

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO.2 OF PACIFIC COUNTY
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PUD No. 2 of Pacific County

2021 Debt Service Coverage Calculation
Electric System Only

2021 Annual Debt Service 1,399,650$              

2021 Total Operating and Other Revenues 30,580,809$            

2021 Total Operating and Other Expenses* (24,890,351)$          

2021 Net Revenues 5,690,458$              

5,690,458$              

1,399,650$              

* Excludes depreciation, bond interest & issuance cost, OPEB & PERS expense accrual.

Calculation:   = 4.07         

Target:   1.25         
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